
Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
1 

The Meeting of the Board of Public Works of the City of Onalaska was called to order at 6:32 1 
p.m. on Tuesday, September 2, 2014.  It was noted that the meeting had been announced and a 2 
notice posted at City Hall. 3 
 4 
Roll call was taken with the following members present:  Financial Services Director/Treasurer 5 
Fred Buehler, Ald. Jack Pogreba, Ald. Jim Bialecki, Mayor Joe Chilsen, City Engineer Jarrod 6 
Holter 7 
 8 
Also present:  Assistant City Engineer Kevin Schubert, Ald. Bob Muth, Ald. Jim Olson 9 
 10 
Item 2 – Approval of minutes from previous meeting 11 
 12 
Motion by Mayor Chilsen, second by Ald. Bialecki, to approve the minutes from the previous 13 
meeting as printed and on file in the City Clerk’s Office. 14 
 15 
On voice vote, motion carried. 16 
 17 
Item 3 – Public Input (limited to 3 minutes/individual) 18 
 19 
Ald. Pogreba called three times for anyone wishing to provide public input and closed that 20 
portion of the meeting. 21 
 22 

Consideration and possible action on the following items: 23 
 24 
Item 4 – 6:30 P.M. Public Hearing (or immediately following the public input) – Regarding 25 
restricting parking on the West Side of Marcou Road 26 
 27 
Jarrod noted that board members’ packets include a copy of the letter he had mailed to abutting 28 
property owners in the Marcou Road neighborhood.  The area that is being proposed as a no-29 
parking zone is on the west side of Marcou Road, from Country Club Lane to approximately 800 30 
feet to the south.  Jarrod said there currently is no parking along the east side of Marcou Road, 31 
and there also is no parking allowed on west side of Marcou Road around the curve.  Jarrod 32 
noted that this is in the area in which sidewalk was installed during the summer, and also that the 33 
roadway width was narrowed to 32 feet, back-of-curb to back-of-curb.  The roadway width 34 
previously was 37 feet. 35 
 36 
Ald. Pogreba opened the public hearing and called for anyone wishing to speak in favor of 37 
restricting parking on the west side of Marcou Road. 38 
 39 
Ald. Pogreba called three times for anyone else wishing to speak in favor of restricting parking 40 
on the west side of Marcou Road and closed that portion of the hearing. 41 

Reviewed 9/4/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
2 

 42 
Ald. Pogreba called three times for anyone wishing to speak in opposition of restricting parking 43 
on the west side of Marcou Road and closed that portion of the hearing. 44 
 45 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to accept the recommendation of the Public 46 
Works Department to remove parking on the west side of Marcou Road. 47 
 48 
For clarification, Jarrod said parking would be removed from Country Club Lane to 1,000 feet 49 
south. 50 
 51 
On voice vote, motion carried. 52 
 53 
Item 5 – Review and consideration of 2015-2019 Capital Improvements Budget 54 
 55 
Jarrod noted the 2015-2019 Capital Improvements Budget has been included in board members’ 56 
packets.  The budget contains multiple years with multiple projects.  Jarrod said the budget’s 57 
proposed timeline is as follows: 58 
 59 

• Tonight:  The budget is presented in a preliminary manner. 60 
• Tuesday, October 7 and Tuesday, November 4 Board of Public Works meetings:  61 

The board will discuss and adjust the budget to the point where its members believe the 62 
budget is ready to be presented to the Common Council for possible approval. 63 

• Tuesday, December 2 Board of Public Works meeting:  public hearing on proposed 64 
C/P budget. 65 

 66 
Jarrod said, “Going through the 2015 Capital Improvements Budget, we have approximately 55 67 
different items or projects included in the budget.  When you look through the budget and you 68 
get to the end, we have not listed any already-bonded or other sources.  I’ll go through that next 69 
month with Fred and turn in those columns.  If you look at the total cost on the end of the Capital 70 
Improvements Budget, if you were to fund everything that is included in this budget, it comes to 71 
$19,794,000.  There are portions of that that are already bonded through other projects that are 72 
carryovers from the previous year.” 73 
 74 
Jarrod highlighted the following budget items: 75 
 76 

• Green Coulee intersection improvements ($4.5 million) 77 
• Well #9 filtration plant and upgrades ($3.25 million).  Jarrod said staff has looked into 78 

the Safe Drinking Water Fund Loan, so this would be taken off the Capital Improvements 79 
Budget total. 80 

• Chiller replacement at Omni Center ($1.1 million) 81 
 82 

Reviewed 9/4/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
3 

Jarrod asked board members to thoroughly examine the list between now and the October 7 83 
Board of Public Works meeting. 84 
 85 
Fred said approximately $3.5 million was bonded for the 2014 Capital Improvements Budget. 86 
 87 
Ald. Bialecki asked that board members be made aware of any applied funds, grants and 88 
carryovers two weeks prior to the October 7 Board of Public Works meeting.  Ald. Bialecki also 89 
asked that department heads provide detailed explanations of their budget requests. 90 
 91 
Jarrod said he hopes that a list of Waterfront projects and cost estimates will be ready to possibly 92 
be programmed into the Capital Improvements Budget at the conclusion of the charrette process, 93 
which runs from September 29 through October 1. 94 
 95 
Ald. Pogreba noted that in years past the board has asked each department to prioritize their 96 
requests and asked if this is the case for the 2015 Capital Improvements Budget. 97 
 98 
Jarrod referenced the Planning Department’s requests and noted that the Waterfront property 99 
acquisition already has been funded.  Jarrod said there was an attempt to prioritize items, but also 100 
noted that Capital Improvements Projects may be rearranged. 101 
 102 
Ald. Bialecki reminded board members that Jarrod told the board a year ago the city had fallen 103 
behind in maintaining its infrastructure and said he will be emphasizing this during this year’s 104 
budget process. 105 
 106 
Jarrod referenced the 13th Avenue North/Hickory Street/Green Bay Street/Green Street/Schafer 107 
Drive projects that had occurred during the summer months and said he assumes the residents 108 
approve of the improved roads. 109 
 110 
Ald. Pogreba referenced items such as sidewalk repair and street maintenance and said he views 111 
these areas as ongoing yearly repairs that should be worked into the city’s General Operating 112 
Budget so it is not necessary to borrow funds. 113 
 114 
In response to a question by Ald. Bialecki, Jarrod estimated that it has been approximately 15 115 
years since pavement maintenance was included in the General Operating Budget.  Jarrod noted 116 
there are revenue restraints and caps associated with pavement maintenance.  Jarrod also 117 
referenced a point Ald. Bialecki had made regarding the last time Schafer Drive had been paved 118 
(1966) and said it is necessary to perform regular maintenance on the streets so they remain 119 
durable for many years. 120 
 121 
Ald. Pogreba said he agrees that it is necessary to perform maintenance, but reiterated he 122 
believes the funding should be included in the General Operating Budget.  Ald. Pogreba said, 123 

Reviewed 9/4/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
4 

“At this point, where it was pulled out several years ago, to put it all back in would be 124 
devastating to the budget.  I would recommend moving 25 percent of that every year for the next 125 
four years, then it would move back over to the General Fund.  That’s where it should have 126 
stayed.  But I realize that people were looking at saving taxes back then, but I don’t know what 127 
the reason was.” 128 
 129 
Fred said, “My philosophy of having it in the Capital Projects is, we make annual installments 130 
over 20 years.  You can use the thought process whether you’re buying vehicles or doing 131 
maintenance on vehicles.  The first year or two you could, in theory, be paying for this 132 
replacement.  By putting it in the General Fund, as far as I’m concerned, it would be very, very 133 
almost to the point of being impossible.” 134 
 135 
Ald. Bialecki inquired about the health insurance rates for 2015. 136 
 137 
Fred said he had spoken with an individual from the Department Employee Trust Fund who told 138 
him this information likely will be known within the next two weeks. 139 
 140 
Ald. Bialecki referenced a police package vehicle that was introduced either in 2010 or 2011 and 141 
carried with it significant costs.  Ald. Bialecki noted some police departments opted to purchase 142 
a larger vehicle with four-wheel drive. 143 
 144 
Mayor Chilsen said Police Chief Jeff Trotnic had pursued the larger package the first year, but 145 
discovered it was not a good fit.  Mayor Chilsen said Police Chief Trotnic has opted for a 146 
medium package that has better gas mileage. 147 
 148 
Jarrod noted Police Chief Trotnic has told him the new Ford police vehicles handle better in the 149 
snow compared to the Ford Crown Victorias. 150 
 151 
Fred noted that “Other Sources” and “Already Bonded” have not been included in the budget and 152 
estimated that the financial figures will decrease significantly once they are included. 153 
 154 
Jarrod said this information will be given to the Common Council in a memo. 155 
 156 
Item 6 – Review and consideration of final special assessments for Marcou Road Project 157 
 158 
Jarrod noted the costs have been included in board members’ packets. 159 
 160 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Bialecki, to approve the final special assessments for Marcou 161 
Road Project. 162 
 163 
On voice vote, motion carried, 4-1 (Ald. Pogreba). 164 

Reviewed 9/4/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
5 

 165 
Item 7 – Review and consideration of Wilson Street crosswalk improvements at Onalaska 166 
High School 167 
 168 
Jarrod noted board members’ packets include a diagram that shows possible crosswalk 169 
alterations at 9th Avenue South and Wilson Street.  Jarrod said the Onalaska School District have 170 
been asking his department about making improvements to the crosswalk because Onalaska High 171 
School students and their parents want pedestrians to have better access to the rear of the school.  172 
Jarrod said Kevin created the diagram included in board members’ packets and noted that Kevin  173 
has been working with the Onalaska School District’s Building and Grounds Director on this 174 
project, which also might include pedestrian signage.  Jarrod said the school district has been 175 
informed it would have to pay for such signage. 176 
 177 
Jarrod said, “We’re looking for direction as far as what the city is willing to do.  Number one, I 178 
just wanted to bring it to the board’s attention that even if we did this it would narrow up the 179 
road and take out a couple of parking spots.” 180 
 181 
Jarrod compared this project to one done on County Trunk Highway PH, where the road 182 
narrows.  There would be less of a crossing, which in turn hopefully would slow down the traffic 183 
at the crossing.  Jarrod said, “We’re trying to do something a little bit out of the ordinary, but 184 
something more than just putting up a sign.  We’re trying to make a physical improvement that 185 
would hopefully slow down the traffic and make it safer for students.” 186 
 187 
Jarrod noted Kevin had done a cost estimate that utilized prices from the miscellaneous concrete 188 
contract and said staff would attempt to obtain specific prices for the project that would be less 189 
than what is listed in board members’ packets.  Jarrod acknowledged that such a project would 190 
be costly to move the street out and perform the concrete work and said, “Does the Board of 191 
Public Works feel this is a worthy project?  And do we feel we’re willing to do this certain 192 
project of narrowing the road?  I think it’s justifiable, and it does what we’re trying to intend it to 193 
do.  The third thing is, do we want to do all costs?  Do we want to propose something to the 194 
school district?  Where do we want to stand on that?” 195 
 196 
Ald. Bialecki said, “I value your opinion on narrowing that street.  More importantly, are there 197 
indeed safety issues down there?  If there are, we’ll have to look at them.  You don’t have to 198 
answer that now.  If you want more time to put your thoughts together …” 199 
 200 
In response to a question by Ald. Bialecki, Jarrod said he could propose to the school district that 201 
it pay for the project.  Jarrod said he also could offer to partner the city with the school district on 202 
the project.  Jarrod noted there have been instances where funds from the sidewalk budget have 203 
been utilized and said, “I think we could participate.  It’s just at what level you feel is 204 
appropriate.” 205 

Reviewed 9/4/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
6 

 206 
Ald. Bialecki asked Jarrod to make sure there are safety concerns in this area that warrant such a 207 
project, and also asked Jarrod if he feels comfortable about narrowing the road. 208 
 209 
Jarrod noted the road is 43 feet wide, compared to 37 feet for a typical City of Onalaska street.  210 
Jarrod referenced Kevin’s diagram and said it still allows 24 feet of clearance, curb excluded.  211 
Jarrod said, “I think it would be fine.  Two 12-foot lanes are standard, so I think you would be 212 
fine.  We would have to mark it for snowplowing, but if you truly want to have people slow 213 
down you’re going to have to have some sort of physical change.” 214 
 215 
Jarrod referenced pedestrian improvements that had been installed along East Main Street and 216 
suggested these improvements might be an option for this project. 217 
 218 
Ald. Pogreba asked if the school district knows the number of students who cross the intersection 219 
and noted he does not witness many students utilizing the intersection.  Ald. Pogreba questioned 220 
whether such a project would be viable and also asked if perhaps there would be state funding 221 
available for the project. 222 
 223 
Mayor Chilsen noted that his son, who graduated from Onalaska High School, utilized the 224 
intersection frequently.  Mayor Chilsen also noted there is significant traffic at this intersection 225 
both at the beginning and at the end of the school day. 226 
 227 
In response to a question by Ald. Bialecki, Jarrod estimated that one parking space would be lost 228 
on each side. 229 
 230 
Ald. Pogreba said he finds the design satisfactory and stated his preference to utilize this design 231 
as compared to what is present on East Main Street. 232 
 233 
Jarrod noted that Kevin is researching different signage that could be installed.  One such option 234 
is a ______, hand-function, flashing crosswalk sign.  Jarrod said this type of sign is cost-efficient 235 
and less obtrusive to install. 236 
 237 
Ald. Pogreba asked if this project was intended to be done this year. 238 
 239 
Jarrod said, “Unfortunately, with the work load in the Engineering Department, we have not 240 
gotten to it.  [The school district] requested it a number of months ago.  They have been asking 241 
for us to look at it since spring.  We said it would be summer, and once I started looking at this 242 
and reviewing what Kevin had done I agreed with his design and think it’s a worthy design.  But 243 
looking at the costs and the narrowing of the road, I wanted to have the board go through it and 244 
make sure the board was in approval of it.  I can bring it back next month, and [Police Chief 245 
Trotnic] will probably be here for Capital Improvements anyway.  He can speak to what his 246 

Reviewed 9/4/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
7 

concerns are in the area and what he’s seen.  I know he has some opinions of it and we can go 247 
through it.  It just won’t get done this year.” 248 
 249 
Item 8 – Pay Estimates:  Strand Associates, Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc., MSA 250 
Professional Services, Mathy Construction, Haas Sons, Winona Mechanical, A-1 251 
Excavating, Wapasha Construction, State of Wisconsin Department of Transportation and 252 
any other contractor/developer  253 
 254 

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS 255 
MONTHLY ESTIMATES 256 

 257 
September 2, 2014 258 

 259 
    Original 260 
    Contract   Change   Paid to  Due this 261 
Contractor   Amount   Orders   Date   Estimate 262 
 263 
1.  PEMBER COMPANIES 264 
     Misc. Concrete Project 265 
     Construction 266 
     Estimate #2  $  94,333.50 $  -  $ 51,099.41  $  17,280.16 267 
        268 
2.  WAPASHA CONSTRUCTION 269 
     2013 Reservoir Improvements 270 
     Construction 271 
     Estimate #8  $   294,991.99     $     -       $   241,333.44 $   23,857.27 272 
 273 
3.  MATHY CONSTRUCTION 274 
     East Main Street 275 
     Construction 276 
     Estimate #4    $   992,959.90     $     ($59,930) $   588,030.92 $   347,199.58 277 
 278 
4.  STRAND ASSOCIATES INC 279 
     Well #9 – Reconstruction/Filter 280 
     Design 281 
     Estimate #3    $   36,900.00     $     -       $   27,450.00 $   7,250.00 282 
 283 
5.  STATE OF WI – DOT 284 
     San. Sewer & Watermain Relocation – Construction 285 
     I-90 Bike Trail 286 
     (1071-06-86) 287 
     Estimate #2    $   240,000.00    $     -       $   228,234.27 $   7,612.15 288 
Reviewed 9/4/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
8 

 289 
6.  SEH INC. 290 
     Water Modeling 291 
     Engineering Services 292 
     Estimate #1    $   500.00     $     -       $   - $   404.64 293 
 294 
7.  LES MANSKE & SONS 295 
     Bait Shop 296 
     Tank Removal & Resoration 297 
     Estimate #1    $   3,000.00     $     -       $   -          $   2,528.60 298 
 299 
8.  KREIBICH LANDSCAPING LLC 300 
     2014 Spring Tree Planting 301 
     Construction 302 
     Estimate #3    $   39,235.00     $     -       $   37,491.13$   1,226.87 303 
 304 
9.  STRAND ASSOCIATES (01321) 305 
     Scada System 306 
     Scada System Troubleshooting 307 
     Estimate #1    $   2,000.00     $     -       $   - $   503.82 308 
 309 
10.  STRAND ASSOCIATES (01321) 310 
     Scada Upgrade 311 
     Design 312 
     Estimate #13    $   30,000.00     $     -       $   29,473.20$   526.79 313 
 314 
11.  MATHY CONSTRUCTION 315 
     2014 Paving Project 316 
     Construction 317 
     Estimate #1    $   610,900.50     $     -       $   - $   129,857.88 318 
 319 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to pay the 11 estimates as printed and on 320 
file. 321 
 322 
On voice vote, motion carried. 323 
 324 
 325 
 326 
 327 
 328 
 329 

Reviewed 9/4/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, September 2, 2014 
9 

Adjournment  330 
 331 
Motion by Mayor Chilsen, second by Ald. Bialecki, to adjourn at 7:01 p.m. 332 
 333 
On voice vote, motion carried. 334 
 335 
 336 
Recorded by: 337 
 338 
Kirk Bey 339 

Reviewed 9/4/14 
 


